
Planning Board Minutes, June 17, 2015 Page 1 
 

Borough of Franklin Lakes 
Bergen County, New Jersey 
Planning Board Minutes 

June 17, 2015 
 

Meeting Called to Order at 7:30PM 
 
Open Public Meetings Statement: Read into the record by Chairwoman 
Vierheilig. 
 
Salutation to the Flag 
 
Preamble: Read into the record by Chairwoman Vierheilig. 
 
Roll Call: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Messrs. Gostkowski, Lauber, 
Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Lazerowitz, Linz, Sheppard (absent), Ochs, Ms. 
Mucci 
 
Fire Safety Announcement: Read into the record by Chairwoman 
Vierheilig. 
 
Also in Attendance: John Spizziri Esq., Board Attorney; Ms. Eileen Boland, 
Boswell Engineering/Board Engineer; Ms. Maria Berardi, Planning Board 
Secretary 

 

Board Discussion 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated, in regards to the Smith application, asked if the Board was 
permitted to walk the property. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated there should be in the Board’s possession a letter from the 
applicant/landowner stating they have no objection to Board members going 
on to the property; if we do not have a letter, then Board members should not 
visit the property. 
 
Ms. Berardi, Board Clerk: stated she did not remember seeing such a letter 
but would reach out to the applicant to obtain one. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated the applicant had requested a meeting with himself and 
the engineer and counsel; there was a letter from Mr. Smith that was a cover 
letter to the Boswell review and this was sent to Mr. Cascio; Mr. Smith’s letter 
instructed the applicant to remove the fill immediately; the DEP was copied on 
this letter. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, June 17, 2015 Page 2 
 

Mayor Bivona: stated, on a separate issue, the Mayor and Council has been 
going through some internal meetings, most in closed session, to discuss 
COAH obligations with respect to recent court rulings; the Mayor and Council 
have agreed to set up a subcommittee which is comprised of himself, 
Councilman Kahwaty, Mr. Hart, Borough Administrator, Ms. McManus, 
Borough Planner, and Mr. Pullaro; collectively we will meet and return to the 
Mayor and Council to discuss plans to fulfill our obligations. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated there is an RFP out for a Board Attorney at this time; 
Mr. Spizziri has informed us that his last meeting is the second meeting in 
July; is planning a get-together to congratulate Mr. Spizziri  on his retirement. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated Mr. Hart has put together an RFP; we are now 
waiting for submissions; a committee of herself, Mr. Pullaro and the Mayor will 
review all the submissions and shortlist them and decide who will be 
interviewed.  

 
Approval of Minutes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty 
April 15, 2015 
All in Favor 
 
May 20, 2015: waiting for revisions. 

 
Resolution: 
Toll Brothers, applicant/contract purchaser, Galenkamp Brothers & David 
McBride, owners 845 Ewing Avenue, Block 3104, Lot 1 and Block 3105, 
Lot 1 and Block 3205, Lot 2 and Block 3206, Lots 1, 1.01, 1.02 and 2 and 
Block 3207, Lots 3, 5 and Block 3208, Lots 2, 3, 4 
 
Mr. Spizziri: reviewed the application and resolution in detail for the Board; in 
addition, Mr. Spizziri has prepared a Developer’s Agreement. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated the plans do not indicate ownership; asked if ownership 
should be listed in the resolution. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated it is in Boswell’s letters; ownership is discussed. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated the map indicates what will be dedicated for public use 
and what will not. 
 
Board discussion took place at this time regarding proposed revisions to 
the resolution.  (No proposed revisions were substantial, per Mr. Spizziri.) 
 
Motion to approve resolution, as revised: Lazerowitz, Councilman Kahwaty 



Planning Board Minutes, June 17, 2015 Page 3 
 

Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Gostkowski, Pullaro, Chairwoman 
Vierheilig, Lazerowitz, Linz 
Recused: Mr. Lauber 

 
Resolution: 
The Alpert Group, Franklin Lakes Supportive Housing Urban Renewal, LP, 
720 McCoy Road, Block 1408, Lot 1; Block 1406, Lot 2 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated he received an email from Mr. Bruce Whitaker stating that 
on the tax map of the property there is evidently another lot that is an internal 
lot for the property; as a result, he asked that that particular internal lot be 
added to the lots set forth in the resolution; has discussed with Ms. Boland 
and she agreed this was correct; suggestion is to approve the resolution as is 
with the correction for an additional lot.  
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: questioned item #13. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated it is necessary because the applicant will be using 
affordable housing trust fund monies to construct this project; this money does 
not come from the Borough; the applicant will not have to make a contribution 
to the Franklin Lake’s affordable housing trust fund; will verify this 
information. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated there is mention of the affordable housing 
trust fund on the last page as well. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated, if the Board wanted to hold the resolution until the next 
meeting that would be fine. 
 
Mr. Ochs: asked, by the nature of the application, isn’t the entire application 
already qualified and being used to satisfy our affordable housing obligation 
and wouldn’t there be deed restrictions in place. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: agreed with the affordable housing obligation but did not know 
about deed restrictions. 
 
Mr. Lazerowitz: stated this is almost not the Board’s purview to being with; 
there are lots of fees associated with items that the Board doesn’t deal with; 
doesn’t feel we needed this because we are determining in advance what the 
town has the right to impose and not impose as a fee; it may be important but 
doesn’t know that it has to be included in the resolution. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated he has always felt that this is a very important item; we 
are pointing out to the applicant and to the public what is the obligation of the 



Planning Board Minutes, June 17, 2015 Page 4 
 

applicant regarding payment for affordable housing trust fund monies; 
discussed the wording he uses for the Wyckoff Zoning Board. 
 
Mr. Lazerowitz: stated he did not believe that this issue could be dealt with at 
this meeting; the Board can’t make it subject to something the Board doesn’t 
know the answer to. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated he did not believe it was that necessary; it is the Board’s 
decision. 
 
Mr. Lazerowitz: stated the language “if required” would work in this situation. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated he would amend #13 to read “since the applicant will be 
using affordable housing trust funds to construct this project…” 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated unfortunately we do not know that is true. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated it has been represented to him by Mr. Whitaker that it is 
true; this representation goes to his client. 
 
Mr. Ochs: stated the Board has to address that if they are to require it, it 
should be in our resolution but we need to determine how it is going to be 
determined later; we can’t leave it blank. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated he would get in contact with Mr. Whitaker before the next 
meeting and clarify these issues and redraft the resolution; further stated he 
could amend item #13 to read “in the event that affordable housing trust fund 
monies are to be utilized to construct the improvements in this application, 
contributions to the Borough of Franklin Lakes Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
may not be required”. 
 
Mr. Ochs: stated, by that logic, if they are not using affordable housing trust 
fund money, then they would have to make a contribution; likes the wording 
used in Wyckoff. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated he will do the same thing with paragraph “g” on the second 
page as to the landscaping; he will work the Wyckoff language in; in addition, 
he will receive the genesis of those comments from Mr. Whitaker. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: stated there are minor grammatical errors that 
should be corrected. 
 
Motion to approve resolution with the edits that were discussed:  
 
Ayes: Gostkowski, Lauber, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Lazerowitz, Linz 
Recused: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty 



Planning Board Minutes, June 17, 2015 Page 5 
 

Not eligible to vote: Mr. Pullaro (voted against the application), Mucci, Ochs 

 
Resolution: 
Franklin Lakes Realty, amended site plan, 556 Colonial Road, Block 1411, 
Lot 2. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: reviewed the application and resolution in detail for the Board; 
reviewed with Ms. Boland the necessity of an amendment to the developer’s 
agreement that has already been in place on the original approval; doesn’t feel 
an amendment to the developer’s agreement is necessary; Ms. Boland agrees; 
no substantive changes to the resolution. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated he had a correction on page 2, #7; stated we don’t want 
to restrict what the area is used for. 
 
Brief discussion held regarding a wooden roof originally proposed; 
language to be changed to “..at the concern of Mr. Linz a wooden roof has 
now been eliminated since it is concrete”. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated paragraph 8c on page 3 is replicated on page 6, #9. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated item #7 on page 5; asked for clarification that this item was 
not discussing Colonial Road. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated it was not regarding Colonial Road; deal with on-site only. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if driveways and paved areas could be added. 
 
Mr. Spizziri: stated yes. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: referred to page 6, item #9; believes it is repeated; the first 
sentence is good; a later sentence mentions wetlands and a transition area; 
asked if mention of the wetlands and transition area could be added to the first 
sentence. 
 

Mr. Spizziri: explained the reason why the statement was written the way it 
was; stated he would fix it. 
 
Motion to approve resolution as amended: Mayor Bivona, Councilman 
Kahwaty 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Gostkowski, Lauber, Pullaro, Linz 
Recused: Chairwoman Vierheilig, Lazerowitz, Mucci 

 
Smith, Major Subdivision with cul-de-sac, 713 Cinnamon Lane, Block 
2310, Lot 1.08 



Planning Board Minutes, June 17, 2015 Page 6 
 

Motion to carry application to August 19, 2015: Councilman Kahwaty, 
Mayor Bivona 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Gostkowski, Lauber, Pullaro, Linz 
 
Ms. Berardi, Board Clerk: stated she will contact Mr. Cascio and ask him to 
notice the property owners by regular mail.  
 

 
Oral Communications: None 
 

 
Approval of Vouchers: Councilman Kahwaty, Mayor Bivona 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Gostkowski, Lauber, Pullaro, 
Chairwoman Vierheilig, Lazerowitz, Linz, Mucci, Ochs 
 
Boswell Engineering: 
 SLFLK-2771 Franklin Lakes Realty, $3,726.00 
 SLFLK-2800 Toll Brothers, $4784.00 
 SLFLK-2817 Maura, $197.00 
 FLK-2846  Franklin Lakes Supportive Housing, $2392.00 
 
John Spizziri, Esq. 
 
 6/3/15, Meeting Attendance, $200.00 
 

 
Motion to adjourn: Pullaro, Councilman Kahwaty 
All in Favor 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:47PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
JoAnn Carroll 
Recording Secretary 


